
立法會 
Legislative Council 

 
 LC Paper No. CB(2)1122/2023 

(These minutes have been seen 
by the Administration) 

Ref : CB2/PL/HA 
 

Panel on Home Affairs, Culture and Sports 
 

Minutes of policy briefing 
held on Monday, 13 November 2023, at 4:30 pm 

in Conference Room 3 of the Legislative Council Complex 
 

Members 
present 

: Hon Vincent CHENG Wing-shun, MH, JP (Chairman) 
Hon Joephy CHAN Wing-yan (Deputy Chairman) 
Hon MA Fung-kwok, GBS, JP 
Hon LUK Chung-hung, JP 
Hon Kenneth LAU Ip-keung, SBS, MH, JP 
Dr Hon Johnny NG Kit-chong, MH, JP 
Hon Nixie LAM Lam 
Hon Andrew LAM Siu-lo, SBS, JP 
Hon YIU Pak-leung, MH, JP 
Hon Kenneth LEUNG Yuk-wai, JP 
Hon CHAN Yuet-ming, MH 
Hon Rock CHEN Chung-nin, SBS, JP 
Hon CHAN Yung, BBS, JP 
Hon CHAN Hoi-yan 
Hon Benson LUK Hon-man 
Revd Canon Hon Peter Douglas KOON Ho-ming, BBS, JP 
Prof Hon LAU Chi-pang, BBS, JP 
Hon Kenneth FOK Kai-kong, JP 
Dr Hon SO Cheung-wing, SBS, JP 
Hon Adrian Pedro HO King-hong 
 

Public Officers 
attending 

: Item III 
 
Home and Youth Affairs Bureau 
 
Miss Alice MAK Mei-kuen, SBS, JP 
Secretary for Home and Youth Affairs 
 
Ms Shirley LAM Shuet-lai, JP 
Permanent Secretary for Home and Youth Affairs 



- 2 - 

  Mr Clarence LEUNG Wang-ching, BBS, JP 
Under Secretary for Home and Youth Affairs 
 
Mr Eric CHAN Sui-wai, JP 
Commissioner for Youth 
 
Mr Nick AU YEUNG Lik, JP 
Deputy Secretary for Home and Youth Affairs (Home Affairs) 
 
Home Affairs Department 
 
Mrs Alice CHEUNG CHIU Hoi-yue, JP 
Director of Home Affairs 
 
Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau 
 
Mr Kevin YEUNG Yun-hung, GBS, JP 
Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism 
 
Mr Joe WONG Chi-cho, JP 
Permanent Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism 
 
Mr Raistlin LAU Chun, JP 
Under Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism 
 
Mrs Vicki KWOK WONG Wing-ki, JP 
Deputy Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism 
 
Mr Sam WONG Tak-sum, MH 
Commissioner for Sports 
 
Mr Gary MAK Sing-hei 
Assistant Head of CreateHK(2)/SG of Film Development Council 
 
Leisure and Cultural Services Department 
 
Mr Vincent LIU Ming-kwong, JP 
Director of Leisure and Cultural Services 
 
 

Clerk in 
attendance 

: Ms Joanne MAK 
Chief Council Secretary (2)4 
 
 



- 3 - 

Staff in 
attendance 

: Mr Thomas CHAN 
Senior Council Secretary (2)5 
 
Miss Kitty LEUNG 
Council Secretary (2)4 
 
Ms Louisa YU 
Legislative Assistant (2)4 
 

  
 

Action 
(Index of proceedings of the meeting is attached at the Appendix.) 
 
 
I. Information paper(s) issued since the last meeting 

[LC Paper Nos. CB(2)1011/2023(01) and CB(2)1019/2023(01)] 
 
1 Members noted that the following papers had been issued after the last 
meeting: 
 

(a) Administration’s response to the letter dated 27 September 2023 
from Hon MA Fung-kwok [LC Paper No. CB(2)1011/2023(01)]; 
and 

 
(b) Joint letter dated 10 November 2023 from Hon Elizabeth QUAT 

and Hon CHAN Yung [LC Paper No. CB(2)1019/2023(01) 
(Chinese version only)]. 

 
2. Regarding the paper referred to in paragraph 1(a) above, 
Mr MA Fung-kwok noted that the Administration had engaged an independent 
consultant to assist in reviewing the financial position of the West Kowloon 
Cultural District Authority (“WKCDA”), and expressed concerns about when 
the Administration would report to the Panel on this matter.  The Chairman 
advised that he had conveyed to the Administration a number of times 
members’ concerns about the West Kowloon Cultural District (“WKCD”). 
 
 
II. Items for discussion at the next meeting 

[LC Paper Nos. CB(2)985/2023(01) and (02)] 
 
3. The Chairman advised that the next regular meeting of the Panel would 
be held on Monday, 11 December 2023, at 4:30 pm to discuss “Community 
Care Fund” proposed by the Administration.  As for another agenda item of 
the same meeting, the Chairman proposed to discuss “setting up two museums 



- 4 - 
 

Action 
about our country and the War of Resistance”, and members raised no objection 
to the proposal. 
 
 
III. Briefing by the Secretary for Home and Youth Affairs and the 

Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism on the Chief Executive’s 
2023 Policy Address  
[LC Paper Nos. CB(2)985/2023(03) and (04)] 

 
4. At the invitation of the Chairman, the Secretary for Home and Youth 
Affairs (“SHYA”) and the Secretary for Culture, Sports and Tourism (“SCST”) 
briefed members on the salient points of the Administration’s papers [LC Paper 
Nos. CB(2)985/2023(03) and (04)] respectively. 
 

(Post-meeting note: The press releases containing the speaking notes of 
SHYA and SCST respectively were issued vide LC Paper Nos. 
CB(2)1027/2023(01) and (02) on 14 November 2023.) 

 
Declaration of interests 
 
5. Mr Rock CHEN declared that he was a Life Honorary Chairman of the 
United Zhejiang Residents Associations (H.K.). 
 
Development of arts and cultural industries 
 
Setting up two museums about our country and the War of Resistance 
 
6. Members generally supported the Administration’s proposal to set up 
two museums about our country and the War of Resistance.  However, some 
members were concerned that the existing exhibitions of coastal defence staged 
in the Hong Kong Museum of Coastal Defence (“HKMCD”) mainly focused 
on introducing information about how the British Hong Kong Government 
protected the property and interests of the British people against pirates in the 
early years which was not in line with the purposes of patriotic education.  
They suggested that the proposed Hong Kong Museum of the War of Resistance 
and Coastal Defence should focus on introducing the history of the War of 
Resistance. 
 
7. In response, the Administration said that, after the re-opening of 
HKMCD in 2022, additional efforts had been made to hold more exhibitions 
covering the Japanese Invasion of China, the Japanese Invasion of Hong Kong, 
the Battle of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong and Kowloon Independent Brigade 
of the East River Column, and so on, to deepen public understanding of the 



- 5 - 
 

Action 
history of that period.  The Administration added that its current plan was to 
re-position HKMCD with a main focus on the history of the War of Resistance, 
while retaining the “coastal defence” element with a view to showing the 
geographical location of HKMCD and the pertaining coastal defence history. 
 
8. To instil in members of the public the correct historical perspective, 
members suggested that the Administration should engage experts to conduct a 
rigorous review of the historical information to be exhibited by the two 
proposed museums.  They also suggested that the Administration might enlist 
the assistance of the relevant Mainland authorities in acquiring accurate 
historical information.  In response, the Administration advised that it would 
consider on a regular basis the recommendations relating to collection 
acquisition and programme selection of the museums concerned, and the 
relevant museum expert advisers would be consulted where necessary.  
Noting members’ concerns about the inaccurate historical perspective 
presented in the “Recreating a Classic: The Best Features of The Hong Kong 
Story” exhibition organized by the Hong Kong Museum of History earlier, the 
Administration explained that the exhibition had been concluded although there 
might be inadequacies resulting from the tight timeframe within which contents 
of previous exhibitions were extracted and re-presented in the exhibition. 
 
9. In response to members’ enquiries, the Administration advised that the 
thematic exhibitions organized in collaboration with the Shenzhen Municipal 
Cultural Relics Bureau would introduce the joint efforts made by Hong Kong 
and Shenzhen during the War of Resistance, as well as the stories of the East 
River Column, with a view to showcasing the history of the War of Resistance 
in a more comprehensive manner.  The Administration also advised that 
detailed consideration would be given to members’ suggestions of collaborating 
with various places in the Guangdong Province area, such as Humen and 
Nansha, to organize activities to showcase the history of national coastal 
defence. 
 
Arts and cultural development in Hong Kong and the related facilities 
 
10. Members pointed out that some members of the arts and cultural sector 
were concerned about the implementation of the Hong Kong National Security 
Law which had created an atmosphere affecting the arts and cultural 
development in Hong Kong as well as retention of the relevant talents, they 
enquired about how the Administration would allay the sector’s concerns.  In 
response, the Administration advised that such concern was unnecessary.  The 
Administration pointed out that it was the responsibility of every citizen to 
safeguard national security and, on the premise of safeguarding national 
security, there was still plenty of room for creation.  Taking the First Feature 



- 6 - 
 

Action 
Film Initiative (“FFFI”) as an example, the latest edition of FFFI received a 
record high number of applications. 
 
11. Given that construction of the Kai Tak Sports Park (“KTSP”) would be 
completed at the end of next year, members suggested that the Administration 
should reserve sufficient timeslots in the venues of KTSP to facilitate the 
organization of large-scale cultural and entertainment events by the industry.  
In response, the Administration said that, as stipulated in the contract, the 
contracted party was required to host sports events on a given number of days 
in a year.  If no sports event or competition was scheduled to be held, the Main 
Stadium could be used for non-sports purposes, such as concerts, exhibitions 
and religious activities. 
 
12. Members were concerned that the existing ancillary transport facilities 
for WKCD could not meet the needs of the public and tourists, and suggested 
that the Administration should provide more fare-charging public transport 
options for travelling to and from WKCD.  The Administration advised that it 
would continue to discuss with WKCDA and the Transport Department to 
identify an appropriate solution to the issue.  In response to members’ 
concerns about the cultural facilities in the Northern Metropolis, the 
Administration advised that a blue and green recreation, tourism and 
conservation circle promoting recreation and tourism development would be 
provided in the Northern Metropolis. 
 
Organizing the Chinese Culture Festival 
 
13. Given that the Administration had plans to organize the Chinese Culture 
Festival on a regular basis from 2024 onwards, members suggested that the 
Administration should formulate a specific theme for each Chinese Cultural 
Festival and assist the industry in the preparation of large-scale performances 
or exhibitions.  The Administration responded that the theme of the Chinese 
Cultural Festival next year would be announced in due course. 
 
Establishing Sha Tau Kok Cultural Tourism Zone 
 
14. Regarding the initiative proposed in the 2023 Policy Address to establish 
the Sha Tau Kok Cultural Tourism Zone, members suggested that the 
Administration should set up an inter-departmental task force to explore with 
the Shenzhen Municipal Government the feasibility of developing a cultural 
tourism zone in Sha Tau Kok on the Hong Kong side and Shatoujiao on the 
Shenzhen side, including exploring arrangements to facilitate access to the 
cultural tourism zone by visitors of both sides.  The Administration advised 
that, starting from early next year, it would gradually open up the Sha Tau Kok 



- 7 - 
 

Action 
Frontier Closed Area (excluding Chung Ying Street).  In the initial stage, 
visitors could apply online for Closed Area Permits to enter Sha Tau Kok for 
sightseeing.  This would promote cultural and eco-tourism of Sha Tau Kok 
and nearby outlying islands.  The Culture, Sports and Tourism Bureau would 
continue to discuss the above matters with the relevant policy bureaux and the 
Shenzhen authorities. 
 
Sports development 
 
Supporting the development of individual sports 
 
15. Members advised that the amount of resources allocated to individual 
sports was often linked to the performance of athletes in international sports 
events.  In this connection, members asked how the Administration would 
promote certain sports with development potential and wide popularity which 
had not yet achieved outstanding performances in international competitions.  
The Administration responded that the Commissioner for Sports was 
considering how to provide funding support for sports with development 
potential.  Members also suggested that the Five-Year Development 
Programme for Team Sports (“the Development Programme”), which was 
implemented in 2018, should be reviewed in a timely manner to help enhance 
the performance of team sports gradually, thereby allowing more opportunities 
for team sports to achieve elite sports status in the future.  The Administration 
advised that the effectiveness of the Development Programme was under 
review, and announcement would be made in due course. 
 
16. Members urged the Administration to expeditiously implement its plan 
to provide a swimming pool capable of hosting international competitions and 
a sports centre with fencing training and competition facilities, so as to further 
promote and raise the standard of swimming and fencing.  In response, the 
Administration advised that it was identifying suitable locations, while 
exploring the possibility of providing the above facilities by way of conversion 
of the existing facilities.  Members were pleased to note that the 
Administration had plans to enhance support for elite athletes in sports 
medicine, and suggested that more training for talents in sports-related 
industries should be provided through the Hong Kong Sports Institute. 
 
Preparatory work for the National Games 
 
17. As regards the National Games (“NG”) to be co-hosted by Hong Kong 
in 2025, members were concerned about the progress of the related preparatory 
work and the arrangements for recruiting volunteers.  In response, the 
Administration advised that the sports competitions proposed to be held in 



- 8 - 
 

Action 
Hong Kong were pending approval from the General Administration of Sport 
of China.  Volunteers would be recruited and trained in the future to facilitate 
the holding of NG.  The Administration added that it had recently arranged for 
representatives to conduct a visit to Guangxi in relation to the National Student 
(Youth) Games to understand the arrangements for volunteers and their job 
specifications. 
 
Major sports events and co-organizing sports competitions with Mainland 
cities 
 
18. Noting that the FIA World Rallycross Championship Hong Kong, 
China—Season Finale 2023, which was held on 11 and 12 November this year, 
experienced problems of shortened schedule and racing track, members were 
concerned about the role played by the Administration in monitoring the event 
and whether the event organizer would be asked to return part of the funds 
provided under the “M” Mark System and Support Package as a result of the 
aforesaid problems.  The Administration explained that the decision to change 
the track and revise the schedule was made after a joint discussion between the 
international event organizer and its Hong Kong counterpart.  Besides, this 
was the first race held on existing roads, instead of at a specific venue.  The 
Administration added that if similar events were to be hosted again in the 
future, it would step up communication with the event organizer to avoid 
recurrence of the above situation. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Admin 
 

19. It was pointed out that the event organizer of the Shenzhen—
Hong Kong youth Muay Thai friendly match, which was held at the end of July 
this year, had asked for assistance in terms of resources and manpower from the 
Administration in organizing the friendly match via a member’s letter to the 
Administration.  However, the Administration did not reply.  The 
Administration advised that it would look into the matter in detail and give an 
account of it to the member concerned.  The Administration added that, for 
future cross-boundary competition events, appropriate support in terms of 
resources and manpower would be provided as far as possible if requests were 
received. 
 
Youth development 
 
Youth entrepreneurship 
 
20. Members advised that the epidemic broke out soon after the launch of 
the Funding Scheme for Youth Entrepreneurship in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (“GBA”) (“the Entrepreneurship 
Scheme”) under the Youth Development Fund in 2019.  As a result, quite a 



- 9 - 
 

Action 
number of Hong Kong young people encountered difficulties in returning to 
GBA to implement their business start-up plans.  In this connection, members 
enquired whether the Administration would consider extending the term of the 
youth entrepreneurship projects implemented by subsidized organizations, so 
as to facilitate more young people to start their own businesses in the Mainland 
cities of GBA through the Entrepreneurship Scheme following the resumption 
of normalcy.  The Administration responded that it had received applications 
for extension of certain projects, and some applications had been approved 
upon review. 
 
21. Members suggested that, apart from providing one-stop information for 
youth entrepreneurs in GBA, the Alliance of Hong Kong Youth Innovation and 
Entrepreneurial Bases in the GBA (“the Alliance”) should also assist them in 
establishing their businesses in the Mainland cities of GBA.  The 
Administration advised that the Alliance would pool the resources of its 
members to provide support to young entrepreneurs through various activities, 
including assisting them in developing their interpersonal and business 
networks and so on, with a view to enhancing their competitiveness. 
 
Youth Link 
 
22. Members expressed concern about the key performance indicators set by 
the Administration for the newly established Youth Link and how it would 
attract young people to participate in the Youth Link.  The Administration 
advised that the Youth Link was launched to link up participants of various 
government youth programmes.  The Administration would offer them 
opportunities to develop diverse talents through participating in seminars, 
different types of large-scale government activities, exchange visits to the 
Mainland and overseas, etc., and strengthen their communication, interaction 
and trust with the Government.  The Administration’s goal was to organize or 
provide at least 10 youth development activities for Youth Link members by 
the end of 2024. 
 
23. Members suggested that the Administration should make use of mobile 
phone SMS messages to disseminate activity information to Youth Link 
members so as to facilitate their receipt of information.  In response, the 
Administration advised that the Home and Youth Affairs Bureau was 
developing a youth-based mobile application targeted to be launched in the first 
quarter of next year.  The mobile application would disseminate diversified 
information on various youth development programmes.  The Administration 
would also maintain communication with young people through various online 
media and platforms. 
 



- 10 - 
 

Action 
Community building 
 
Promotion of clansmen culture 
 
24. Members welcomed the Administration’s proposal to launch the 
“Clansmen Culture Promotion Scheme” in the first quarter of 2024 for three 
years, and suggested that the Administration should organize briefing sessions 
on the procedures for making funding applications for officers working for the 
secretariats of clansmen associations, and deploy staff to answer enquiries from 
applicants.  Also, members suggested that the Administration should impose 
the requirement for matching funds on the clansmen associations applying for 
funding support, and encourage various clansmen associations to collaborate in 
organizing activities, with a view to making more effective use of the funds 
allocated.  In response, the Administration said that it would arrange briefing 
sessions to assist clansmen associations in understanding the details of the 
relevant schemes, and clansmen associations were welcome to apply for 
funding support to organize activities in different formats. 
 
Promoting youth participation in community building 
 
25. Members expressed support for the Administration’s initiative to invite 
each District Youth Community Building Committee to propose a distinctive 
photo-taking landmark for their district, as they considered that such an 
initiative would strengthen young people’s sense of belonging to their districts.  
Members suggested that the Administration might consider inviting the tourism 
industry to participate in the above activities to promote the photo-taking 
landmarks from the tourism perspective and deepen young people’s 
understanding of the operation of the tourism industry.  The Administration 
advised that it welcomed the active cooperation of the tourism industry in 
designing the itineraries for visiting the photo-taking landmarks in 18 districts, 
and promoting and publicizing the results of young people’s efforts in setting 
up the photo-taking landmarks in various districts of Hong Kong to visitors 
from the Mainland and overseas places through social media, and so on. 
 
District Services and Community Care Teams 
 
26. Given that the District Services and Community Care Teams (“the Care 
Teams”) would assist the Administration in identifying persons in need of 
assistance (e.g. elderly singletons, families of elderly doubletons and single-
parent families) and referring persons with mental health needs to seek 
appropriate assistance, members suggested that the Administration should 
provide suitable training for members of the Care Teams and volunteers.  The 
Administration agreed with members’ views, and pointed out that the services 



- 11 - 
 

Action 
of the Care Teams could not replace the services provided by professional 
departments, but members of the Care Teams, upon receiving the relevant 
training, might assist colleagues in professional departments, such as 
outreaching social workers and community nurses, in providing support at the 
district level, with a view to widening the coverage of the relevant services. 
 
27. In response to members’ enquiries, the Administration advised that the 
Care Teams were being arranged one after another to use the offices vacated 
following the dissolution of Mutual Aid Committees.  Members were also 
concerned about how the Care Teams would support ethnic minorities (“EMs”) 
to enable them to integrate into the community.  In response, the 
Administration advised that, on top of the existing eight support services 
centres for EMs (“EM centres”), it had plans to set up one EM centre each in 
Kowloon Central and New Territories East respectively.  It would also invite 
the 10 EM centres to set up an EM Care Team in each centre to visit EM 
households to understand their needs, introduce to them the public services they 
need, and assist in referring their cases to relevant departments or organizations 
for the arrangement of professional services. 
 
Women’s development and facilitating building management 
 
28. Members were concerned about how the Administration would promote 
women’s development through the setting up of the Women Affairs Team and 
the designation of the post of Commissioner for Women Affairs.  Members 
urged the Administration to proactively reach out to grass-roots women and 
assist “hidden women” in reintegrating into the community.  The 
Administration advised that the establishment of the Women Affairs Team and 
the designation of the post of Commissioner for Women Affairs demonstrated 
the Government’s determination to promote women’s development.  Such 
initiatives might also strengthen cross-bureau collaboration, thereby enabling 
more effective implementation of the relevant policy initiatives in addressing 
problems.  The Administration added that it would organize the first Family 
and Women Development Summit to create an atmosphere of concern for 
women’s development and collect views on different issues from those who 
were engaged in the work of supporting women. 
 
29. Members noted that the Administration would introduce an amendment 
bill to amend the Building Management Ordinance (Cap. 344) within the 
current legislative session.  In response to members’ concern about the 
management of “three-nil buildings”, the Administration advised that it would 
continue to provide a range of free building management support services, 
including inviting district organizations or non-governmental organizations 
(“NGOs”) to reach out to “three-nil buildings” to encourage and assist them in 



- 12 - 
 

Action 
forming owners’ corporations under the Building Management Professional 
Advisory Service Scheme.  In addition, consideration would be given to 
entering into contracts of longer terms with local organizations or NGOs to 
ensure the continuity of the work. 
 
Others 
 
30. Members welcomed the Administration’s initiatives to restructure the 
existing Create Hong Kong as the Cultural and Creative Industries 
Development Agency (“the Development Agency”) and expand the 
establishment of the Development Agency, so as to recruit industry 
practitioners and promote the arts, culture and creative sectors as industries.  
Members were concerned about the long-term goal of setting up the 
Development Agency, and suggested that the Development Agency should 
draw reference from the Korea Creative Content Agency (“KOCCA”) and play 
a more proactive role in promoting the development of arts, culture and creative 
sectors as industries.  In response, the Administration advised that it was 
inappropriate to make comparisons between the Development Agency and 
KOCCA, whether in terms of the scale or amounts of capital injection.  
However, under the industry-oriented principle, the newly-restructured 
Development Agency would take the initiative to identify opportunities outside 
Hong Kong for the relevant sectors, and proactively lead groups of the 
industries to different parts of the world for exhibitions and showcases, with a 
view to exporting Hong Kong’s cultural and creative industries and exploring 
business opportunities for them.  The Development Agency would also 
conduct in-depth research and disseminate industry news on topics of cultural 
and creative industries in and outside Hong Kong. 
 
31. Members noted that the Administration proposed to inject around 
$1.4 billion into the Film Development Fund (“FDF”), in which $840 million 
would be earmarked for enhancing Hong Kong film productions, including 
launching the Film Financing Scheme for Mainland Market and the Hong 
Kong-Europe-Asian Film Collaboration Funding Scheme under FDF.  
Members suggested that the Administration should collaborate with the 
Mainland enterprises for matching funds through the Film Financing Scheme 
for Mainland Market, with a view to providing funding support for more 
sizeable film productions  The Administration pointed out that the Film 
Financing Scheme for Mainland Market aimed to help boost the chance of 
Hong Kong films for release in the Mainland market and nurture more local 
directors to enter the Mainland film market; the production budget of the film 
projects eligible for funding support under the above schemes had to be 
between $25 million and $150 million.  The Hong Kong-Europe-Asian Film 
Collaboration Funding Scheme aimed to help Hong Kong filmmakers broaden 



- 13 - 
 

Action 
their regional cultural horizons, draw inspiration from film productions of other 
countries and have a better understanding of the market demands of other 
countries, thereby enabling Hong Kong films to go global. 
 
 
IV. Any other business 
 
32. There being no other business, the meeting ended at 6:23 pm. 
 
 
 
 
Council Business Division 2 
Legislative Council Secretariat 
11 December 2023  



Appendix 
 
 

Proceedings of policy briefing of the 
Panel on Home Affairs, Culture and Sports 
on Monday, 13 November 2023, at 4:30 pm 

in Conference Room 3 of the Legislative Council Complex 
 

Time 
Marker 

Speaker(s) Subject(s) Action 
Required 

Item I - Information paper(s) issued since the last meeting 
000347 - 
000507 
 

Mr Vincent CHENG 
(“Chairman”) 

Mr MA Fung-kwok 
 

Opening remarks 
 
Information papers issued since the last meeting 
 

 

Item II - Items for discussion at the next meeting 
000508 - 
000636 
 

Chairman 
Administration 

Items for discussion at the next meeting 
 
 

 

Item III - Briefing by the Secretary for Home and Youth Affairs and the Secretary for Culture, 
Sports and Tourism on the Chief Executive’s 2023 Policy Address 

000637 - 
002347 

Chairman 
Administration 
 

Briefing by the Administration  

002348 - 
002835 

Chairman 
Mr Andrew LAM 
Administration 
 

Arts and cultural development under the Hong 
Kong National Security Law 
 
 

 

002836 - 
003206 

Chairman 
Mr Adrian HO 
Administration 
 

Developing the film market 
 

 

003207 - 
003728 

Chairman 
Mr Kenneth LAU 
Administration 
 

Training for the District Services and Community 
Care Teams (“the Care Teams”) 
 
Establishing Sha Tau Kok Cultural Tourism Zone 
 

 

003729 - 
004212 

Chairman 
Mr Kenneth FOK 
Administration 
 

Themes of the Chinese Culture Festival 
 
Details about the establishment of the Cultural and 
Creative Industries Development Agency 
 

 

004213 - 
004834 

Chairman 
Ms CHAN Yuet-ming 
Administration 
 

Organizing cross-boundary sports competitions 
 
Setting up two museums about our country and the 
War of Resistance 
 

Admin 

https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=227
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=307
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=308
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=396
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=397
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=1427
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=1428
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=1715
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=1716
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=1926
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=1927
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=2248
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=2249
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=2532
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=2533
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=2914


 
 
 

- 2 - 

Time 
Marker 

Speaker(s) Subject(s) Action 
Required 

004835 - 
005600 

Chairman 
Mr LUK Chung-hung 
Administration 
 

FIA World Rallycross Championship Hong Kong, 
China—Season Finale 2023 
 
 

 

005601 - 
010006 

Chairman 
Dr Johnny NG 
Administration 
 

The Film Financing Scheme for Mainland Market 
 
Content development for streaming platforms 
 

 

010007 - 
010606 

Chairman 
Mr Rock CHEN 
Administration 
 

Promotion of clansmen culture 
 
Organizing large-scale cultural and entertainment 
events in the Kai Tak Sports Park 
 

 

010607 - 
011208 

Chairman 
Mr CHAN Yung 
Administration 
 

The Youth Link 
 
Offices of the Care Teams 
 
Setting up two museums about our country and the 
War of Resistance 
 

 

011209 - 
011841 

Chairman 
Mr MA Fung-kwok 
Administration 
 

Setting up two museums about our country and the 
War of Resistance 
 
Exhibitions organized by the Hong Kong Museum 
of History 
 

 

011842 - 
012401 

Chairman 
Dr SO Cheung-wing 
Administration 

Ancillary transport facilities for the West Kowloon 
Cultural District 
 
Cultural facilities in the Northern Metropolis 
 

 

012402 - 
013005 

Chairman 
Mr Kenneth LEUNG 
Administration 
 

The term of the projects under the Funding Scheme 
for Youth Entrepreneurship in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (“GBA”) 
 
The Alliance of Hong Kong Youth Innovation and 
Entrepreneurial Bases in the GBA 
 
Preparatory work for the National Games 
 

 

https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=2915
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=3360
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=3361
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=3606
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=3607
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=3966
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=3967
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=4328
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=4329
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=4721
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=4722
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=5041
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=5042
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=5405


 
 
 

- 3 - 

Time 
Marker 

Speaker(s) Subject(s) Action 
Required 

013006 - 
013625 

Chairman 
Mr YIU Pak-leung 
Administration 
 

Photo-taking landmarks in various districts 
 
Thematic exhibitions organized in collaboration 
with the Shenzhen Municipal Cultural Relics 
Bureau 
 

 

013626 - 
014049 

Chairman 
Ms Nixie LAM 
Administration 
 

The Youth Link 
 
Women’s development 

 

014050 - 
014548 

Chairman 
Ms CHAN Hoi-yan 
Administration 
 

Women’s development 
 

 

014549 - 
015645 

Chairman 
Administration 
 

Supporting the development of sports 
 
Support for ethnic minorities 
 
Facilitating building management 
 

 

Item IV - Any other business 
015646 - 
015655 
 

Chairman 
 

Closing remarks 
 

 

 
 
 
Council Business Division 2 
Legislative Council Secretariat 
11 December 2023 

https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=5406
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=5785
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=5786
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=6049
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=6050
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=6348
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=6349
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=7005
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=7006
https://webcast.legco.gov.hk/public/en-us?meetingid=M23110033&start=7015

